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To Whom It May Concern:

I am lason Barnum member manager of Jason Barnum Home Improvements LLC. The reason | am
writing this letter is to appeal a decision made by the residential contractor’s board. On May 10, 2012,
the residential contractor board met at their normal scheduled meeting. On the agenda were
complaints of the following addresses: 609 San Marco, 3117 West Omaha, both of these addresses have
the same owner, Cliff Zent, 2517 Arrow Street, 4320 #19B West Main and 817 Anamosa. Also on the
agenda was the city’s own complaint that Jason Home Improvements LLS did not have current insurance
on file.

! would like to start by addressing 609 San Marco and 3117 West Omaha addresses, Jason Barhum
Home Improvements LLC, obtained a building permit on 609 San Marco on or about March 7, 2012, a
building permit for 3117 West Omaha and on or about March 9, 2012. On March 8, 2012, 3117 West
Omaha Jason Home Improvements LLC passed all required city inspections before the home owner
issued payment for labor Mr. Zent inspected the roof and approved it and then paid for labor on 3117
West Omaha on March 8, 2012. In regards to 609 San Marco address Jason Barnum Home
improvements LLC obtained a building permit for the address did the reroofing project on March 9, 10
and 11 Jason Home Barnum improvements LLC took the required pictures to show the roof was done to
city code on March 10, 2012. On March 11, 2012, Jason Barnum, the member manager of the company
was on the roof finishing it. Mr. Zent brought it to my attention he had spent more on the materials than
what the estimate stated. | reminded Mr, Zent that did not accept the original estimate for labor and
materials. | also reminded Mr. Zent that we had a verbal agreement that | would bill iabor only. Mr. Zent
demanded | needed to adjust the labor price because | went over in material costs; Mr. Zent was again
reminded he was being billed for labor only and the materials was the home owner’s responsibility. Mr.
Zent then demanded | Jason get off his roof; however, | felt he had a duty as a licensed contractor in the
community of Rapid City, South Dakota, that | had to close the roof since all that was left to do was put
the ridge cap on. | paused for a moment because Mr. Zent stated if | did not get off his roof he was going
to call his attorney. | then responded “call your attorney and | will call mine.” Mr. Zent walked away and
| immediately dialed my attorney’s number, Mr, Pete Fuller and did not expect him to answer on a
Sunday. Mr. Fuller answered the phone and | said “Mr. Fuller | have a question for you | am on a roof
and the home owner wants me to get off the roof but | feel | have a duty to close it.” Mr. Fuller
responded “have the home owner put it in writing and get off the roof.” Mr. Zent who was still on the
roof overheard the eonversation when | got off the phone Mr, Zent said “was that Judge Fuller”. | said to
Mr. Zent “that is correct was Judge Fulier”. Mr. Zent then advised his son in law was Kent Haag of
Whiting Haag Haag Dorsey and Haag Attorney’s in Rapid City, South Dakota and he would speak with his
son in law about this. 1 said “fine speak with your son in law but | am going to close your roof unless you
'put it in writing the reason you want me to get off your roof.” Mr. Zent then got off his rocf and |
proceeded to close his roof. | finished the roof in its entirety. | then told Mr. Zent the work was
completed, Mr. Zent, then got on the roof and inspected the roof and told me how nice it looked. Mr.
Zent then got off the roof and | had to ieave the job site and left the bill with one of my employees to
give to the home owner and collect. It is my understanding the employee gave the home owner, Mr.





Zent, the bill and the homeowner said “I am going to have to think about this.” The employee then
informed me by phone that Mr. Zent refused to pay the bill. | told the employee to pack up and leave
the job site and | would deal with it the next day. However, | was able make contact with Mr. Zent that
same evening; Mr. Zent stated he had a list of complaints and he needed more time to think about
paying the bill. [ asked him how much time he needed. He advised he needed a couple more days. |
contacted Mr. Zent on March 13, 2012, and said we needed to come to a resolution and get the bill paid.
Mr. Zent told me he had something for me to come and get. | went to Mr. Zent’s residence and he
handed me a paper from his attorney, Mr. Kent Haag, aka son in law which was a personal and business
guarantee on his roof, | looked at the paper, | said to Mr. Zent, | needed to take this to my attorney,
Peter Fuller, and have him review it. Mr. Zent agreed and | informed him he would be back in 30
minutes. 1 took the paper to Mr. Fuller and was advised if | was going to sign it not to sign it personally
only as member manager of Jason Barnum Home Improvements LLC. | took the paper back to the
homeowner, Mr. Zent and | informed him “my attorney Pete Fuller has advised me not to sign this
personally; however, | am so damn confident in my work that | will.” Mr. Zent then said “the deals off.” |
stated “fine you still owe me for the work on your roof.” There was also a price adjustment that | was
going to agree to just to resolve the issue. The next thing | know the homeowner had filed a complaint
with Angie’s List, he also filed a complaint with the City of Rapid City, he also made contact with the
South Dakota Attorney Generals Office Consumer Protection, the attorney general apparently advised
him that Jason Barnum Home Improvements LLC has had nine complaints in the last five years that
Jason Barnum Home Improvements LLC has worked through, Mr. Zent then decided after that
information not to file a complaint with the South Dakota Attorney Generals Office Consumer
Protection. It is my belief based off information received from the home owner of 2517 Arrow Street
that Cliff Zent had went on line and pulled every permit issued in the past two years and was trying to
make contact with all the homeowners, some of whom were in the meeting that is why | belief what the
owner of 2517 Arrow Street sated.

1 would know like to address 2517 Arrow Street compliant, the homeowner is Chris Ingersol. | reroofed
the house and obtained the required building permits on or about April 18, 2012, the agreement | had
with Mr. Ingersol was to reroof house and subcontract his gutters for his insurance proceeds. Mr.
Ingersol obtained two checks from the insurance company and signed over to Jason Barnum Home
Improvements LLC, the completion of the roof was on or about April 25, 2012, and passed all reguired
city inspections on or about April 25, 2012. Mr. Ingersol inspected the roof and told me it would work
for his purposes; which | took as Mr. Ingersol accepted the roof. | was supposed to arrange a gutter
company to do seamless gutters on his house. | told Mr. Ingersol | would get back with him the next day
as there as some touch up things which needed to be done on the roof. | received a text from Mr.
_Ingersol the next day that | was not to come back to his property and | needed to stay away from his
property as | was allegedly under investigation and Mr. Ingersol was going to hold my trailer, ladder and
some tools until the matter was cleared up, to this day Mr. Ingersol stili has possession of the items and
has not made the final payment from the insurance company. | have not been able to get a
subcontractor to do the gutters based off of Mr. Ingerol demanding | not return fo his property. The
next contact | had with Mr. Ingersol was at the corner of Mountain View and West Main at the scene of
an accident where | was rear ended, Chris Ingersol comes out of no where, yelling at me and all | was





trying to do was get the other driver’s information. Mr. Ingersol then started yelling at my wife, |
instructed her to get back in the vehicle as it was drivable. The other driver’s vehicle was also both
drivable therefore we both left so the situation would not escalate. A few days later, | get a text
message from Mr. Ingersol if | did not return $4100 | would be going to jail; 1 have saved all
communication.

Another address is 817 Anasoma on the agenda; however, that party did not show for the meeting,
therefore, | will not be addressing this at this time.

On to 4320 #19B West Main address, the home owner is Susan Bascon. Ms. Bascon hired me to do
painting, general handyman improvements and replace two doors. Ms. Bascon paid for half of the
services up fronts so materials could be purchased to proceed with the job. 1 got into the job realized
there were other things which would require a licensed plumber, which would need to be
subcontracted. | asked Ms. Bascon for funds to cover these services; the bank put this check on hold. |
did not know how much the plumbers or other subcontractors which would have to be brought in would
charge as there was also some electrical issues which required a licensed electrician. Ms. Bascon agreed
after providing the second check she would be billed for the difference in the end; she agreed. | received
the check from the homeowner’s sister, as Ms. Bascon was in Puerto Rico. | informed the homeowner
through text message that the check was put on hold and the homeowner stated sometimes banks do
not understand that Puerto Rico is actually part of the United States. | stated to the homeowner with
the funds being placed on hold it would limit my ability to continue moving forward with the job but |
would do my best to move the job forward with limited funds. The homeowner said nothing other than
then asking me what progress had been made. Ms. Bascon would text me up to three times day some
days, asking me what the progress was taking away time that needed to be spent on the job, | was then
to install doors, however, the weather prohibited this, the homeowner was informed of this, | was
contacted a couple of days later by another handy man service that he was hired to take over the job. |
said thank you for the information as | decided not to have a conversation with the other handyman
service, | immediately e-mailed the homeowner asking her if there was a way this could be worked out
and settle it. The homeowner filed a complaint with Angie’s List, the Better Business Bureau and the
South Dakota Attorney‘s General Office Consumer Protection and also with the City of Rapid City, | e-
mailed the homeowner which agency she would like me to work with on settling this issue. The
homeowner’s response was settle or court, never informing me of which agency she would like me to
work with. The homeowner, Susan Bascon, had her sister at the meeting. She stated the plumber | had
hired had not performed his job correctly and the electrical was not done to code even though there
were no electrical changes.

Moving on to the no insurance issue, when | was informed by the city that they did not have a copy of
. the insurance card on file, | immediately supplied one to them. In conclusion, the board moved to
revoke my contractor’s license due to not having not filed a copy of the insurance with the city. That is
the only thing the board made a decision on at the May 10, 2012 meeting and it is my belief that the
board took their power to excess because under normal circumstances license contractor are allowed to
have three strikes on their license before it is revocable and Jason Barnum Home Improvements LLC has
none. | believe solely on that the board’s decision should be overturned immediately. 1 also believe |





should be given a hearing which gives proper time to address the complaints that are stated herein with
representation of counsel, Pete Fuller. | feel that my 14" amendment right violated as | had called the
city three weeks prior to the meeting to and asked them to move the meeting to the next scheduled
meeting as my counsel was not available due to open heart surgery and | was told by Brad Solon,
Building Official, that he would e-mail the board and ask if the meeting could be moved and get back to
me. Brad did not get back with me, four days later | called the city back and spoke to Carmen and was
informed that the board had denied my request. | then attempted to hire another attorney; however,
due to financial hardship | was unable to retain another attorney. | then contacted Mr. Pete Fuller the
day before the scheduled meeting while in cardiac rehab and explained the situation both Mr. Fuller and
myself made phone calls to the city attorney’s office, and asked for it to be postponed due to Mr.
Euller's current medical issue. It is my understanding the assistant city attorney, Wade, told Mr. Fuller he
would recommend to the board that he would post pone the meeting until Mr. Fuller was available to
represent myself which assistant city attorney, Wade, did not recommend to the board. | chose to
exercise my 5" amendment during this meeting due to not having counsel. Therefore, | feel my 14"
amendment rights of the US Constitution were violated due to not having due process. | would request
that this appeal be granted; however the city attorney’s office or the board set a time to have a hearing
of this matter were Mr. Fuller can be present and the complaints can be addressed as such. However,
this is not a complete answer to the complaints this is only a summary as | feef it would be appropriate
to have a complete answer with proper representation of counsel. | would like to thank the council
hearing this appeal.

Respectfully,

JJdson Barnum

Member Manager

Jason Barnum Home Improvements LLC
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MINUTES
Residential Contractor Board
May 10, 2012 7:30 A.M.

The Rapid City Residential Contractor Board met on Thursday May 10, 2012, with Scott Sogge, presiding. The
following members were present: Jim Bickett, William Morrison, David Asbridge, David Grundstrom, Scott
Sogge Staff present: Brad Solon, Building Official, Wade Nyberg, Asst. City Attorney, Allison Marsland, Asst.
City Attorney, Karmen Deuter, Administrative Secretary. Others Present: Kathy Reichert, Joe Youngblood,
John Hester, Linda Ali, Chris Ingersoll, Bill Besancon, John Paulson, Jason Barnum, Dan Boschee, James
Burow, Candace Archer, Cliff Zent, Stephen LaPrade, Jerry Noel, Kent Hagg, Doug Rowley

Sogge called the meeting to order at 7:30AM.

Sogge suggested moving Item 3 to 4 and 4 to 3 in the interest of time. Sogge also suggested combining Item
4 and 6 to handle all LaPrade items at once. Grundstrom moved to set the Agenda with the above
mentioned changes, Morrison seconded and the motion carried with a vote of 5-0.

Grundstrom moved to approve the minutes from the April 12 meeting, Bickett seconded and motion
carried with a vote of 5-0.

Sogge reviewed the Residential Contractor Board bylaws highlighting that each person that wants to speak
must fill out a speaker request form and each person speaking is limited to 5 minutes.

All Phase Roofing and Construction — Archer responded to the complaint from Rapid Claims Service
concerning the overcharging for the permit. Archer stated that it was an estimated value and the price
charged to the insurance company is different than what is charged for the building permit for the city. Bickett
responded that the permit was applied for after the job was done and inspections need to be made while doing
the roof and the discrepancy on the amount is very large. Archer responded that there is new management in
the office in Rapid City and they have made a couple mistakes. Archer also stated that there are a lot of
different costs that go into the price charged the insurance company. Boschee responded that All Phase was
provided a copy of his estimate prior to the work being done so All Phase knew what the estimated cost was.
Sogge clarified that the permit cost submitted was $4500 and contract price was $18000. Morrison stated
that what we are dealing with is the wrong amount put in on the permit. Archer stated that $18000 was the
total claim and included items that did not need a permit. Asbridge asked how much the contract was to the
client for just the roof. Boschee stated that the roof portion was $10000. Bickett stated that this was after the
job was done so there shouldn’t have been a question on the estimated value. Issue continued to the end of
the meeting.

LaPrade Roofing — Tower Court Update. Laprade read a letter addressed to Tower Court Residents, Dave
Reyelts and RCB. Laprade stated that they are ready to move forward completely as soon as materials are
on the job site. The materials have not been provided as of yet and LaPrade’s attorney is working on this.
Sogge asked if any had been done as of this date. LaPrade clarified that none had been done at this time.
Asbridge stated that it sounds like Reyelts is balking at providing the materials because he provided the
materials the first time. LaPrade stated that LaPrade and Reyelts had an agreement in principle last year,
that LaPrade provide the labor and Reyelts provide the materials. Asbridge moved that the Board allow
the time necessary for LaPrade Roofing and Reyelts Construction to resolve the difference of who
provides the material to rectify the situation, with a report 90 days from today concerning status.
Bickett seconded and motion carried with a vote of 5-0.

Complaint against LaPrade Roofing for 6457 Seminole Lane — Morrison moved that we bring LaPrade
Roofing before the Board at the next meeting to address this complaint. Grundstrom seconded and
motion carried with a vote of 5-0.





Residential Contractor Board Minutes
May 10, 2012
Page 2

Jason Barnum Home Improvement —

Wade Nyberg stated that Jason Barnum asked for a continuance because his attorney was unable to be here
today. Nyberg also stated that Barnum hadn’t received a copy of the complaints. Barnum stated that he
would not speak without his attorney being here.

3117 West Omaha and 609 San Marco - Cliff Zent presented his complaint concerning his two properties.
Improper procedures were used to install the roofing on 3117 West Omaha, garbage was left under the
shingles, nails thru the shingles, and the boiler vent was left disconnected for 5 days until Zent discovered it.
An independent inspector (Dusty Johnson) was hired by Barnum to inspect Zent’s roof and Johnson told Zent
there were many problems and there were going to be leaks. Bickett asked if this was inspected by the city.
Zent replied that it wasn't.

2517 Arrow Street - Chris Ingersoll detailed his complaint concerning his property. Barnum did not get a
permit for removing a window and his roof needs to be completely replaced due to deficiencies. Bickett asked
if this was inspected by the City. Ingersoll responded that it was inspected by the City on three sides. The
back side was not inspected. Barnum’s foreman stated in a report to the insurance inspector that used
shingles and drip edge were used to roof his house.

817 Anamosa — Property owner was not at the meeting.

4320 West Main Unit 19B— Kathy Reichert is representing this property for her sister. Jason Barnum Home
Improvement wired switches and they did not work properly. There were many other problems with the work
done at the property. The property owner had an electrician friend check out the wiring and he said that they
need to have it checked. Conrad Electric checked the switches and stated that it was a dangerous situation.
The City electrical inspector checked the property and put a stop work order on the job because work was
done without a permit, not done by a licensed electrician and there were code violations. Conrad has now
done the work and had it inspected and passed.

Insurance — Our records show that Jason Barnum Home Improvement did not have insurance from 4/11/11
thru 3/16/12. Zent added that Horsch from Hill City called Jason Barnum’s insurance agency to file a claim
and was told that that Jason Barnum'’s insurance expired November 2010 for lack of payment.

275 Viking Drive — Jeri Noel spoke concerning a roofing job done by Jason Barnum Home Improvement at
her property 4 years ago. Her roof leaked into her garage and Barnum told her that the shingles were inferior
and the manufacturer sent a check to replace the shingles and repair inside damage. The shingles were
replaced but the inside work was never done. Reichert added that a similar situation happened at her sister’s
property, stating that Barnum claimed he was in a bind and received full payment so he could pay his plumber
and electrician. Barnum did not pay the plumber and a mechanic’s lien was filed against the property at 4320
West Main, Unit 19B.

J & S Sheetmetal — Joe Youngblood did work for Jason Barnum as a subcontractor and was never paid.

Linda Ali spoke concerning a complaint about her property out in the county. Ali stated that Jason Barnum was
paid in advance for work that was not completed and was done incorrectly. After filing a report with the
Division of Consumer Protection Ali received a check for $4400 from Jason Barnum that was NSF and there is
an ongoing investigation concerning this.

Doug Rowley speaking for Emily and Mike Beck spoke concerning property out in the county. Property owner
paid in advance for work and it was never done.

John Paulson Plumbing — John Paulson did work for Jason Barnum as a subcontractor and was never paid.
237 E. Fairmont Blvd - John Hester spoke concerning hiring Jason Barnum to replace his shingles on his roof

in October 2011 He paid $2400 in advance, per Jason Barnum’s request so shingles could be purchased
before price went up, with a promise from Jason Barnum to repay that amount after the insurance check came
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in. Hester signed over his entire insurance check but has never been reimbursed by Jason Barnum for the
$2400 as promised and the materials are sitting on his roof but no work has been done as of this date.

Zent stated that Jason Barnum attempted to put a restraining order against him but was denied by the Judge.

Ali asked if this was the board that gives the licenses and if the Board looks at other states for work history.
Sogge stated that we do not and Ali said it would not be a bad idea to check out lowa in this circumstance.

Kent Hagg spoke concerning the issue at hand. He asked that the Board and City Attorney work with the
State’s Attorney office concerning the crimes that have been committed. Hagg offered his services and
support as an Attorney, at no charge, to help however he can.

Morrison moved to revoke Jason Barnum Home Improvement’'s license due to lack of insurance,
Asbridge seconded and motion carried with a vote of 5-0.

Quality Roofing — started a job at 1121 Naples Court without a permit. Bickett moved that we send
Quality Roofing a letter inviting them to address the board concerning this complaint. Morrison
seconded and motion carried with a vote of 5-0.

Slate Ridge Builders — At this point this is not a code violation.
Infinity Roofing Update — All properties have been re-inspected.

Apex Roofing Update — They have purchased new permits and are in the process of getting the inspections
done.

Solon presented the license applications. Morrison moved and Bickett seconded the motion to
approve the licenses that are eligible for approval. Motion carried with a vote of 5-0.

The Board reviewed and approved the following license applications:
Dathe, Norm — Norm’s Handyman Service

Cockrum, Jaron — Dumont Building, Inc.

Fairbanks, Troy — Dimensional Greenworks, Inc.
Oswald, Clyde Dane — Dimensional Greenworks, Inc.
Peter, Greg — R.C. Peter Construction, Inc.

Steele, Robert J. — Robert James Steele Construction
Erlon, Sam — Sam Erlon Construction

Kubal, Mike — M.K. Construction

Houchens, Jerry E. — Doors Unlimited and Construction
Henry, Robert — Black Hills Renovator

Reyes, Mary E — Roof Care Center

Goben, Roy — Woodworks by Roy Goben

All Phase Roofing and Construction continued — Grundstrom moved and Morrison seconded the
motion to put a second strike against All Phase Roofing and Construction’s license for getting a
permit after doing the work and under reporting the cost of the work. Motion carried with a vote of
5-0.

Asbridge asked about a newspaper article about the City Attorney hired to enforce code and the board held a
brief discussion.

The Board discussed moving the Residential Contractor Board meeting to one of the upstairs conference
room, due to lack of space in the current location.

Bickett moved to adjourn, Grundstrom seconded and motion carried with a vote of 5-0.
There being no further business the meeting adjourned at 9:12 AM.






CITY OF RAPID CITY

RAPID CITY, SOUTH DAKOTA 57701-5035
Rapid City Residential
Contractor Board
300 Sixth Street

MEMORANDUM

TO: City Council

FROM:  Scott Sogge, Chairman, Rapid City Residential Contractor Board
DATE: May 30, 2012

RE: License Revocation — Jason Barnum Home Improvements LLC

The Rapid City Residential Contractor Board heard numerous complaints concerning Jason
Barnum Home Improvements in recent years.

At the May 10 Contractor Board meeting after hearing several new complaints, it was discovered
that Barnum did not have proof of insurance for a lengthy period of time.

Proof of insurance is a requirement of the ordinance that must be adhered to. Several
individuals attempted to make a claim on Barnum’s insurance during a time period when
Barnum’s insurance had lapsed.

Recommendation: The Rapid City Residential Contractor Board recommends that City
Council uphold the decision to revoke the license for Jason Barnum Home Improvements
LLC.
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1800 Santa Isabel, Urb. El Pilar
San Juan, PR 00926
May 30, 2012

City of Rapid City City Council
300 Sixth Street
Rapid City, SD 57701

Dear Hon. Sam Kooiker, Councilpersons Brown, Doyle, Laurenti, Nordstrom, Davis, Wright,
Mason, Roberts, Petersen, and Sasso:

I am writing regarding the appeal filed by Jason Barnum of the revocation of his
residential contractor license. Mr. Barnum has addressed the various complaints that were
filed against him before the Board, including mine regarding a property that my husband and |
own located at 4320 West Main, unit #19B. Since | live out of state, | am requesting to address
the council in writing; however, my sister, Kathy Reichert, may attend the meeting on June 4,
2012, and address the council on my behalf.

| am attaching for your reference my complaint which was filed with the residential
contractor licensing board. Below is my point by point reply to Mr. Barnum’s appeal to this
council as it pertains to my property. His contentions are highlighted in yellow; my responses
follow.

In short, Mr. Barnum’s method of doing business seems to be to make a low bid, obtain
a deposit, perform some work, and then begin to make excuses, delay completion, ask for
additional funds, and then disappear. He does not pay his subcontractors, leaving them to
proceed against the property owners, even though their fees were already charged to the
homeowners. He claims to be licensed and insured, but is neither; he also uses unlicensed
subcontractors and does not obtain the permits required by the city building code. These were
common threads in the homeowner stories told to the residential contractor licensing board.
Mr. Barnum is unprofessional and engages in fraudulent business practices; he is a disgrace to
the construction profession in Rapid City and his license should certainly not be reinstated. In
fact, the city attorney should investigate him on behalf of the citizens of Rapid City and
surrounding communities.

Thank you for your attention to this matter. Sincerely,

Susan Besancon





On to 4320 #19B West Main address, the home owner is Susan Bascon.
My name is Susan Besancon.

Ms. Bascon hired me to do painting, general handyman improvements and replace two doors.
Ms. Bascon paid for half of the services up fronts so materials could be purchased to proceed
with the job.

Check #8830 in the amount of $2,475 was issued to Mr. Barnum on March 31, 2012; the same
was paid by the bank on which it was drawn (Banco Popular de Puerto Rico) on April 3, 2012.

| got into the job realized there were other things which would require a licensed plumber,
which would need to be subcontracted. | asked Ms. Bascon for funds to cover these services;
the bank put this check on hold.

Check #8831 in the amount of $2,574.00 was given to Mr. Barnum by my sister, Kathy Reichert,
on April 17, 2012, as per Mr. Barnum’s request so he could pay his subcontractor. This check
was paid by the bank on which it was drawn on April 18, 2012. Thus, Mr. Barnum has been paid
in full as per our contract, but did not complete his work nor deliver the doors. Further, it
should be noted that although Mr. Barnum was advanced his second payment (due upon
completion of work) in order to pay his plumber, he did not do so, resulting in his plumber
making a demand for payment against me and placing a mechanics’ lien on my property. Also,
apparently this plumber hired by Mr. Barnum is not actually a licensed plumber; his name does
not appear on the list of plumbers licensed by the City of Rapid City or the State of South
Dakota.

| did not know how much the plumbers or other subcontractors which would have to be
brought in would charge as there was also some electrical issues which required a licensed
electrician.

Interesting admission by Mr. Barnum; see last sentence of his statement below, wherein he
states that “there were no electrical changes”. In fact, it was Mr. Barnum that proposed
changing all of the outlets in the unit and then hired a worker who was not a licensed
electrician to perform the work, and failed to obtain a permit to do the work as required by the
city code.

Ms. Bascon agreed after providing the second check she would be billed for the difference in
the end; she agreed.





At the time, yes; however, this agreement was modified between the parties as detailed below.

| received the check from the homeowner’s sister, as Ms. Bascon was in Puerto Rico. | informed
the homeowner through text message that the check was put on hold and the homeowner
stated sometimes banks do not understand that Puerto Rico is actually part of the United
States. | stated to the homeowner with the funds being placed on hold it would limit my ability
to continue moving forward with the job but | would do my best to move the job forward with
limited funds. The homeowner said nothing other than then asking me what progress had been
made.

On April 17, Mr. Barnum requested via text “Ok heres my proposal if you would have Kathy give
me u that second payment she has | will pay the plumber when hes done and | will also by elect
if need and we will wont charge for ac install and changing the outlets | ask for this cause |
under bid myself abit which is my fault | got a little better stuff than estimated and then u can
just by me for plumber when | am done let me know thanks” | replied “No problem. She has
the check — just told me it arrived yesterday.” The check was delivered to Mr. Barnum later
that day. The check was paid by my bank the following day — April 18, 2012. Therefore, any
hold on the funds was placed by Mr. Barnum’s bank, not mine. At that time, Mr. Barnum had
represented to me that all work except for the plumbing and door installation was complete; he
further represented that the doors were ready and would be installed by April 19. On the 19"
Mr. Barnum’s excuse for not finishing the work was that it was raining; no further claims about
lack of funds were raised.

Ms. Bascon would text me up to three times day some days, asking me what the progress was
taking away time that needed to be spent on the job, | was then to install doors, however the
weather prohibited this, the homeowner was informed of this, | was contacted a couple of days
later by another handyman service that he was hired to take over the job.

Most of my communication with Mr. Barnum was via text message, as | live in Puerto Rico and
was not in Rapid City to personally oversee the job. | sincerely doubt that receiving three text
messages a day hindered Mr. Barnum in the completion of his work. At this point he had
consistently failed to meet his promised dates for the completion of work and should not have
been surprised by my inquiries as to the status of the work.

On April 23" | was apprised by my realtor, who went by the property to inspect the work as
per my request, of the true status of the situation. Mr. Barnum’s next excuse for not finishing
the work was that he was sick in bed, but his foreman was working on it. On April 25", my





sister requested the help of a friend of hers, who is a licensed electrician, and he found serious
deficiencies in the electrical work being performed at the property. Accordingly, they informed
the city inspector, who issued a stop work order. That evening, | informed Mr. Barnum to
perform no further electrical work in the condo and to deliver the doors, or return my second
payment, immediately. He did neither.

| hired a new contractor, Clayton Kelly, who began work on April 28. He contacted Mr. Barnum,
who initially offered to deliver the doors to Mr. Kelly, and even cover the cost of installation by

Mr. Kelly; however, Barnum failed to deliver the doors and ceased all communications with Mr.
Kelly and myself.

| said thank you for the information as | decided not to have a conversation with the other
handyman, | immediately e-mailed the homeowner asking her if there was a way this could be
worked out and settle it.

This statement mischaracterizes what happened. In fact, he had several conversations with Mr.
Kelly, during which they discussed Barnum giving the doors to Kelly for installation. | replied to
Mr. Barnum, asking when he would deliver the doors. He replied that he has spoken to Clayton
Kelly and would deliver the doors the following week for Clayton to install. He never delivered
the doors, and stopped responding to the phone calls of Mr. Kelly and myself.

The homeowner filed a complaint with Angie’s List, the Better Business Bureau and the South
Dakota Attorney’s General Office Consumer Protection and also with the City of Rapid City. | e-
mailed the homeowner which agency she would like me to work with on settling this issue. The
homeowner’s response was settle or court, never informing me of which agency she would like
me to work with.

A complaint was filed with the SD Attorney General’s Office, Division of Consumer Protection
on April 28, 2012. To my knowledge, Mr. Barnum has not replied to said complaint.

A complaint was filed with the Better Business Bureau on April 28, 2012. It was assigned
complaint #300079319. Mr. Barnum has been notified twice of the complaint and as of May
28, 2012, has not responded.

A complaint was filed with Angie’s List on April 30, 2012. It was assigned case ID 31615. Mr.
Barnum was given until May 15 to reply; he did not, and as a result was placed in their “penalty
box” on May 17, 2012.





My complaint was sent to the Residential Contractor Board on May 2, 2012, for consideration
at their May 10 meeting; the results of that meeting are subject of this appeal.

I informed Mr. Barnum that he could select any of the above-mentioned dispute resolution
proceedings; he chose none of the above. | also informed him he could settle directly with me,
which he has chosen not to do. He leaves me no alternative but litigation. Mr. Barnum’s
contention that he does not know what to do to resolve our dispute is ridiculous; he has made
no efforts whatsoever to resolve the matter.

The homeowner, Susan Bascon, had her sister at the meeting. She stated the plumber | had
hired had not performed his job correctly and the electrical was not done to code even though
there were no electrical changes.

Since | live in San Juan, Puerto Rico, my sister, Kathy Reichert, who lives in Rapid City, and my
brother, Bill Besancon, who was in town, attended the meeting of the Residential Contractor
Board on May 10, and my sister spoke on my behalf.

| hired Clayton Kelly to finish the work that | had already paid Mr. Barnum to perform. | paid
Mr. Kelly $812.68. | also paid Rothenberger Plumbing $71.43 to correct and finish the work
performed by Mr. Barnum’s plumber. | also paid Conrad Electric $556.27 to correct and finish
the work agreed to be performed by Mr. Barnum. Additionally, | need to pay $357.00 to Mr.
Barnum’s plumber, as he was never paid by Mr. Barnum (despite the fact that the need to pay
this plumber was the reason for Mr. Barnum requesting my second payment before completion
of the work). An additional $143.10 was paid to K&D Appliance to finish the installation of the
range hood agreed to be performed by Mr. Barnum. Finally, $84.37 was paid to Harvey’s Lock
for new knobs/locks for the doors (included in the cost of the new doors quoted by Mr.
Barnum). These sums total $2,024.85.

Additionally, Mr. Barnum never delivered or installed the custom doors for which he was paid
in full. | do not believe that Mr. Barnum ever actually ordered the custom doors which he
charged me for. | have received two estimates from other contractors for the doors and their
installation; the lower of the estimates is for $3,251.93.

Therefore, by my estimation, Mr. Barnum owes me $2,024.85 plus delivery of the doors and
S600 for their installation, for a total of $2,625, or, if he cannot deliver the doors, a total of
$5,276.75, which includes the cost of me obtaining the doors from another source and having
them installed.





This sum has been informed to Mr. Barnum, as well as Angie’s List, the BBB and the SD State
Attorney General’s Division of Consumer Protection.





1800 Santa Isabel
Urb. El Pilar

San Juan, PR 00926
May 2, 2012

City of Rapid City
Residential Contractors Board

To Whom it May Concern:

I am writing to inform you of my experience with Jason Barnum Home Improvements,
LLC, headed by Jason Barnum, who represents himself as a contractor who is insured and
licensed by the city of Rapid City.

Summary

Jason Barnum was paid $5,049 to complete various projects at the condominium unit |
own. While some of his work was completed satisfactorily, much of it was improperly
completed and has required me to hire other contractors, plumbers and electricians to finish work
that he was already paid to perform or repair damage caused by his work. Most importantly, he
has failed to deliver and install two exterior doors which were characterized by him as “the most
expensive part of the project”. He has, for the most part, failed to respond to attempts to
communicate with him — via telephone, text message and e-mail — only sending two e-mail
replies stating that he “wants to resolve the matter” but taking no action to do so.

Background

My husband and | own a property located at 4320 W. Main St., unit 19B, in the Village
Green condominium complex in Rapid City. We purchased this property about 15 years ago for
my mother to live in. Since she moved to a nursing home in December, 2011, we decided in
February, 2012, to sell the unit. After one month on the market, we decided to invest in some
home improvements to make the unit more attractive for sale.

I traveled to Rapid City in March, 2012 to begin the improvement process. | met with
Jason Barnum on March 30 to review the work that | was interested in having done; he returned
with a written proposal the following day and we signed a contract, a copy of which is attached.





To summarize, Jason agreed to do the following work for $5,074.00, $2,500.00 to be
paid at the same of signing and $2,574.00 to paid upon completion:

install new boards on deck and stain or waterproof as needed
repair all wall and ceiling cracks

replaster living room wall where wallpaper was removed (by me)
prime and paint all walls (except kitchen) and ceiling

. install wall board in both bathrooms (to cover up wallpaper) and on the back of paneled
kltchen cabinets (facing dining room)

6. replace vanity, sink and faucet in upstairs bathroom

8. replace sink and faucet in downstairs bathroom

9. replace toilets in both bathrooms

10. install new ceiling fixtures throughout unit

11. install new front entry door and patio sliding door
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I wrote a personal to check to Jason for $2,500 that same day; it was deposited by him and
cleared.

It was impressed upon Jason that time was of the essence because the unit was “off the
market” while the renovations were ongoing, and we needed to sell it as quickly as possible as
we were incurring expenses (condominium fees and taxes) with each month the unit remains
unsold. Jason was also aware that my sister, Kathy Reichert, would be my “contact person” in
town, as | live out of state. Finally, Jason was aware that | had already purchased new carpet for
the entire unit and the same was scheduled for installation the first week of April.

Jason told me that he would complete the work by Monday, April 16. Accordingly, |
rescheduled the carpet installation for April 17-18, because | wanted the construction work to be
completed before the new carpet was installed, and conveyed that wish to Jason.

Jason and his employees began work immediately, working on the deck. Significant
progress on the deck was made before | left town on April 4. Before leaving, | asked Jason to do
some additional work; he agreed to do so and let me know the additional cost. | decided to
replace most of the kitchen appliances, and asked Jason to install the dishwasher and range
hood, as well as an air conditioner. He informed me that the dishwasher would require a
plumber and the range hood would require an electrician.

On Wednesday, April 11, I wrote Jason asking for an update and a confirmation that he
would be done by Monday, April 16. He replied that he was “on track” and suggested installing
new electrical outlets and switches because it would look nice with the new paint. | agreed, and
asked what he had done so far and whether he would be working over the weekend. He replied





that the deck was done, all patching done, the back of the kitchen cabinet was paneled, old
ceiling fixtures had been removed, and that they were painting. He also informed me that they
had decided to remove the bathroom wallpaper and texture and paint it instead of paneling it. He
further stated that the doors would be installed as soon as the painting was done, and that his
plumber was coming over to install the dishwasher. He stated that it looked like the doors would
be installed on Friday (April 13).

Jason’s plumber encountered some problems with the installation of the dishwasher, as
well as the bathroom work, due to the existing pipes; he informed me there would be some
additional plumbing charges. He later informed those to be $408.

On April 12, Jason wrote indicating that the plumber would give him his estimate that
afternoon and warning that he didn’t think they would finish by Monday the 16", that he might
need until the 19", and would let me know in the morning.

Jason did not finish by April 16 as promised. He told me that he needed a few more days
and would definitely be done by April 19. Accordingly, I re-scheduled the carpet installation for
April 20. He also told me that he needed me to advance the second and final payment so that he
could pay his subcontractors (plumber and electrician), and in exchange for doing so, he would
not bill me anything for the additional work that he verbally agreed to do. I agreed to do so, and
my sister, who had the check in her possession, delivered it to Jason. The check was deposited
and cleared.

On April 17, Jason informed that the doors would be installed on the 18", that they were
“real nice” and he didn’t want his workers to damage them so he wanted to install them last.

On April 20 Jason informed me that almost everything was done, but that there was a
problem with the doors because the frame was manufactured incorrectly so that the doors opened
the wrong way. He told me it would be fixed by Monday, and the doors would be installed then,
on Monday, April 23. He also assured me that before he left on Friday, all the other work
besides the doors would be completed. He said he would be “100% done” by Monday.

The doors were not installed on April 23 as promised. My realtor went by the unit to
take photos of the newly renovated unit for the online posting and reported that there were many
things left to do — by her estimation, at least 3 days of work. She sent me photos documenting
her observations. | wrote to Jason, asking him what was the status of the work; he replied that
“there was small stuff”, he was “trying”, and asking if he was supposed to paint the kitchen
ceiling. | asked why everything but the doors was not done, as he had told me on Friday it would
be, why the doors were not installed, and what was the problem with the paint. He replied that
he was sick with the flu but his foreman Greg was “working on things” and he would text me an





update in the evening. He also said he was looking into the paint issue. | never received an
evening update.

On April 24, | wrote to Jason and asked when the doors would be installed, what was the
problem with the paint, and when the work would be done. He replied that he wasn’t sure what
the paint problem was, but that he would consult a paint expert and would have to add a coat of
paint. He further said that he hoped the doors would be installed that same day, and that all work
would be done by Friday morning.

On April 25, I wrote to Jason asking how it was going; he replied “good”. | wrote again
asking for an update; there was no reply.

My sister went to the condo mid-day and found Jason’s subcontractor, Henry (who is also
his brother-in-law), attempting to fix the 3-way switch that he installed. He told Kathy that he
did not know how to do so, but that he was doing his best and would go home and study the
matter and return the next day to finish. She found that no other work had been done. She
became suspicious about the electrical work being performed and asked a friend, who works
with Black Hills Power and Light, to come and take a look at it. He, in turn, asked another
electrician from Conrad Electric to accompany him. They discovered that the electrical work
was not properly done and characterized the same as dangerous and in violation of the building
code. They also told Kathy that this type of work requires a permit from the city. They agreed
to fix the improperly done work and to install the range hood.

Accordingly, I wrote to Jason that evening, instructing him to do no further electrical
work. | further instructed him to either install the doors or refund the second payment | had
made to him by 4:00 p.m. the following day, Friday. | sent him a text message, alerting him to
my e-mail. He did not deliver the doors or a refund.

On April 26, | wrote to Jason asking “where are the doors”? No reply was received.
That same day, Kathy contacted the city licensing board to inquire about filing complaints.

On April 27, | contacted two other contractors for door estimates. That evening |
received a reply to my email of 4/25, wherein Jason states that he “doesn’t want anymore
problems” and that he is “more than willing to still install” the doors or arrange for them to be
delivered to the condo.” 1 replied the next day asking “when will the doors be delivered?”

On April 28, | wrote to Jason asking “where are the doors?” No reply was received. My
new contractor met my sister at the condo that day and began work.





On April 29, I wrote to Jason indicating that since he was not responding to my
communications | assumed he would neither finish his work nor deliver the doors, and that |
would therefore hire someone else to finish the work and file an action against him to recover my
costs. That evening I received an e-mail from Jason indicating that he has spoken to the new
contractor and that he would deliver the doors to him for the new contractor to install. | replied,
asking whether Jason would be reimbursing the new contractor for his installation costs.
Subsequently, I spoke to the new contractor, who told me that Jason had told him that he would
deliver the doors for him to install on Thursday and would cover his expenses.

On April 30, I wrote to Jason, via both text message and e-mail, asking him to deliver the
doors to the condominium that same day (Monday) so that the new contractor could make sure
he had everything he needed to begin installation on Wednesday. He did not reply to my text
message or email, nor did he answer my phone call. Nor did he answer calls from the new
contractor. | called several places in Rapid City; | only found one manufacturer of residential
exterior doors and they had no record of an order being placed by Jason Barnum. The new
contractor had already contacted Knecht’s; they also have no record of an order placed by Jason
Barnum. He has declined to reveal to either the new contractor or to me where he ordered the
doors from.

On May 1, I received an e-mail reply from Jason, stating that he had gotten several
reviews and complaints online and wanted to resolve our issues, asking me to respond to his e-
mail so that we could come to an agreement. | replied:

“I have responded. You are the one who has not responded. If you wanted to achieve
a resolution you would have delivered the doors yesterday, answered the phone when |
called, or responded to my emails or text messages. I’m done with your excuses.”

I have not heard anything more from Jason. The new contractor has not heard anything from
Jason. The doors have not been delivered.

Jason’s method of doing business seems to be to start projects but not finish them, not do
his work properly, take money but not deliver, and offer meaningless strings of excuses for his
endless delays. 1 do not believe he every actually ordered any doors for my project, and if he
claims to have done so, he should be required to provide evidence of doing so, including
supplier, date of order and price.

It’s a shame that someone like Jason Barnum is licensed by the City of Rapid City.

Sincerely,

Susan B. Besancon
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